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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT

The Board of Trustees of the Seychelles Pension Fund (SPF) is pleased to present its report together with the auditors report and the
audited Financial Statements for the year ended December 31, 2021, As per the Seychelles Pension Fund, 2005 (SPF Act 2005),
Secction 54, the annual report is presented to the Minister responsible for Finance, the National Assembly and a copy is made
available on SPF's website.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
Seychelles Pension Scheme commenced its operations under the Seychelles Pension Scheme Act, 1990, CAP 220 with effect from
January 1, 1991, In August 2005, the Seychelles Pension Scheme Act, 1990 was repealed and was replaced by Seychelles Pension

Fund Act, 2005 under which the scheme became a statutory body and was renamed as SPF,

REGISTERED OFFICE OF SPF

The registered office of SPF is at Caravelle House. second floor, PO Box 576, Victoria, Mahé, Seychelles.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of SPF is to collect contributions from members and pay benefits mostly to retiring members. It includes
payment of monthly pension to pensioners and the dependents of the deccased members, as well as other benefits under various
schemes as per Section 4 of the Act and applicable Regulations.

RESULTS FOR THE YEAR 2021 2020

SCR SCR
Surplus for the year before fair value changes 1,459,610 80,918,991
Net changes in fair values of investments 17.243.131 (11,699,391)
Retained surplus brought forward 1,012,628.514 043,408,914
Retained surplus carried forward 1,031,331,255 1,012,628.514

INTEREST ON MEMBERS' FUND

Interest rate for the year 01.01.2021 to 31.12.2021 was 2.53% and 5.00% for Mandatory and Voluntary contributions respectively.
The rates are based on average 91 days treasury bills and average saving rates for the previous year end 2020, as published by
Central Bank of Seychelles. (01.01.2020 to 31.03 2020: Mandatory 2.72%, Voluntary 3.99% and 01.04.2020 to 31.12.2020:
Mandatory 2.72%, Voluntary 5.00%).

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

SPF acquired property and equipment amounting to SCR 2.6m during the year, comprising mainly of equipment (2020: SCR 3.5m).

The Board is of the opinion that the fair value of property and equipment as at December 31, 2021 did not differ materially from
their carrying amounts as per the Statement of Net Assets available for benefits at that date.

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
SPF has invested substantial amounts in properties for rental and capital appreciation purposes. As at December 31, 2021, these

totaled to SCR 1.41b (2020: SCR 1.39b). During the vear, additions amounted to SCR 36.8m (2020: SCR 72.37m). The net deficit

on change in fair value on investment properties as at December 31, 2021 amounted to SCR 19.2m (2020: Delicit of SCR 9.33m).

Page 72 Seychelles Pension Fund Annual Report 2021



SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REPORT (CONT...)

BOARD OF TRUSTEES

The Board of Trustees since the date of the last report and the date of this report are:

Existing members Appointment Date
Mare Houarcau - Chairman (From st March 2021)
Patrick Payet (From February 2018)
Elsic Morel (From st March 2018)
Jovinella Rath (From st March 2021)
Shannon Jolicocur (From lst March 2021)
Jose St Ange (From Ist March 2021)
Shella Mohideen (From Ist March 2021)
Brenda Morin (From Ist March 2021)
Sarah Lang (From lst March 2021)

STATEMENT OF BOARD OF TRUSTEES' RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Trustees is responsible for the overall management of the affairs of SPF and all its investment decisions, The Board
also ensures that proper accounts and other books and records in relation thereto are maintained. In preparing these financial
statements, the Board has a general responsibility to:

- ensure that the financial statements are on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to assume continuance of SPF;

- select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

- make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent and;

- disclose and explain any material departures from applicable accounting standards.
The Chief Executive Officer of SPF is, as defined in the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2003, responsible for the day to day
administration, including the collection of contributions, payment of pensions and other benetits, investment of surplus monies and

accounting for all monies collected, paid or invested by the SPL.

The Board and the Chief Executive Officer also have the general responsibility for taking reasonable steps to safeguard the assets of
SPF and detect fraud and other irregularities.

The Board and the Chief Executive Officer consider that they have met their aforesaid responsibilities.
AUDITORS

The Auditor General of Seychelles is mandated to carry out the audit of the SPF under Section 53(2) of the Seychelles Pension Fund
Act, 2005. They have outsourced the services to Baker Tilly, Chartered Accountants, Seychelles for the year 2021,

TRUSTEES

Marc Yjouareau

Sarah Lané ‘-

> : :
Jovinella Rath \j Shannon Jolicoeur
i

Shella Mohideen

Date: May 6, 2022
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A Office of the Auditor General
3rd Floor, Block C, Unity House
O G Victoria, Republic of Seychelles
[P0 1iea rom severiiies ]

Telephone: 248-4672500 Email: auditgen@o0ag.sc
Website: www.oag.s¢ Facebook: OAG Seychelles

Please address all correspondence to the Auditor General
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OPINION OF AUDITOR GENERAL ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF
THE SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

Opinion

The accompanying financial statements of the Seychelles Pension Fund, set out
on pages 4 to 39, which comprise of the statement of financial position as at 31
December 2021; statement of surplus and other comprehensive income;
statement of changes in net assets available for benefits; and statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and the notes to the financial statements, including
a summary of significant accounting policies, have been audited on my behalf by
Baker Tilly Chartered Accountants (auditors), appointed under Section 19 of the
Auditor General Act, 2010 read with Section 53(2) of the Seychelles Pension Fund
Act, 2005 as amended. As per the agreement with the auditors, they have reported
to me the results of their audit and on the basis of their report, | am satisfied that
all information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief,
where necessary for the purpose of the audit, have been obtained.

Accordingly, in our opinion,

(c) proper accounting records have been kept by the Fund as far as it appeared
from examination of those records; and

(d) the financial statements on pages 4 to 39 present fairly, in all material aspects,
the financial position of the Fund as at 31 December 2021 and of its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
the applicable International Financial Reporting Standards, Seychelles
Pension Fund Act, 2005 and Public Enterprise Monitoring Commission Act,
2013.

Basis for Opinion

The audit was conducted in accordance with the international Standards on
Auditing (ISAs). My responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the ‘Audifor-General's responsibilities for the audit of financial statements’ section
of this report. | am independent of the Fund in accordance with the INTOSAI Code
of Ethics applicable to its members, together with other ethical requirements that
are relevant to the audit of financial statements in Seychelles. | believe that the
audit evidence obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion.
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3{a)
Going concern basis

Attention is drawn to note 36 of the financial statements which indicates that as a
result of spread of Covid-19, economic uncertainties have risen which have
negatively impacted on all businesses in the, Seychelles. The extent of the impact
on the Fund's operations and financial performance will depend on the duration
and spread of the outbreak and its effect on the economy, employees, customers
and suppliers, all of which remains uncertain presently.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the SPF being a
going concern. Our opinion is not medified in respect of this matter.

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of
most significance in the audit of financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as
a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit
addressed the matter is provided in that context.

Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures
performed to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on
the accompanying financial statements.

» Fair valuation of financial assets and investment properties based on IFRS 13:

Our audit considered fair valuation of financial assets and investment properties
as a key audit matter. The materiality of the reported amounts in the financial
statements, inherent subjectivity due to the estimates used in determining the fair
values and use of inputs from various sources in the fair value calculation
underpinned our basis for considering it as a key audit matter.

To assess the reasonableness of the fair value of financial assets and investment
properties, the audit procedures (among others) were designed to obtain sufficient
and appropriate audit evidence, including the following:

» Evaluating the design effectiveness of controls over estimation of impairment
of financial assets, which included assessing the level of oversight, review and
approval of impairment policies of the Fund;

e Test-checking the underlying calculations and data;

* Assessing the valuation expert's competency, experience, qualifications and
independence where necessary;

+ Verifying the reasonability of the assumptions used in fair valuation;

e Obtaining a written representation in regard to the valuation decisions and
assumptions,

* Assessing the adequacy of the related financial statement disclosures.
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3(b)

> Impairment allowance for Financial assets based on IFRS 9:

The audit considered impairment allowance for financial assets as a key audit
matter. The materiality of the reported amounts in the financial statements,
subjectivity associated with Management's impairment estimation, probable
impacts of COVID -19 outbreak and related government relief measures on the
key assumptions underpinned our basis for considering it as a key audit matter.

To assess the reasonableness of the impairment allowance, the audit procedures

(among others) were designed to obtain sufficient and appropriate audit evidence,
including the following:

s Performing procedures in order to assist our understanding of the methodology
applied by management in their IFRS 9 model,

e Evaluating the impairment methodology applied against the requirements of
IFRS 9; financial instruments;

» Evaluating the completeness of data in the impairment model by reconciling
the data used in the impairment model to the debtor’s source;

e Agreeing source data used in the modelling to supporting documentation on a
sample basis to assess accuracy and validity;

e Testing the assumptions and calculations used in the ECL, including, but not
limited to performing an assessment of the developed methodology applied in
calculating the ECL allowance and reasonableness of the overlays that
management calculated to determine the potential impact of Covid-19 and
other legislation on the impairment aliowance.

As a result of the above audit procedures, no material differences were noted.

Responsiblilities of management and those charged with governance for the
Financial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation of the fihancial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards and in compliance with the requirements of the Seychelies Pension
Fund Act, 2005 as amended and for such internal control as management
determine, is necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the management is responsible for
assessing the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting uniess the Board of Trustees either intends to liquidate the Fund or
cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

The Board of Trustees are also responsible for the overall management of the
affairs of the Fund including the operation of the Fund and making investment
decisions and financial reporting process.
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Responsibilities of the Auditor General

My responsibility is to express an opinion on those financial statements based on
our audit and report it to the Board of Trustees.

The audit objectives are toc obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error and issue an auditor’s report in accordance with the Seychelles
Pension Fund Act, 2005 as amended. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of the audit in accordance with ISAs, the auditor exercises professional

judgement and maintains professional scepticism throughout the audit. The
auditor also:

¢ |dentifies and assesses that risk of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtains audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for the opinion. The risk of
not detecting material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omission or misrepresentation, or the override of internal
control;

¢ obtains an understanding of the internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the SPF’s internal control;

* evaluates the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made
by the management;

e concludes on the appropriateness of the management's use of going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
concludes whether a material uncertainty exists relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the fund's ability to
continue as a going concern. If the auditor concludes that a material
uncertainty exists, the auditor is required to draw attention in the
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or
if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify the opinion. My
conclusions are based on audit evidence obtained to the date of my
auditor's report. However, future unforeseeable events or conditions
may cause the fund to cease to continue as a going concern;
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3(d)

* evaluates the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial

statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation;

« communicates with those charged with governance among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that are
identified during the audit.

Gamini Herath 10 May 2022
Auditor General Victoria, Seychelles
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION - DECEMBER 31, 2021

Notes 2021 2020
SCR SCR

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property and equipment 7 17,809,512 20,789,806
Investment properties 8 1.408,297,2006 1.395.698 478
Right of use on assets 9 41,623,711 42,139,175
Investment in subsidiary - Opportunity Investment Company Limited 10 40,562,865 40,562,865
Investment in associates - Seychelles Breweries Limited 11 264,339,829 265,135,334
Investment in associates - Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited 11 25,333,715 36,111,891
Investment in associates - Cable & Wireless Seychelles Limited 11 294,435,792 154,934,990
Investment in financial assets 14 564,242,410 613.641,987
Loans receivable 16 71,946,931 90,778,933

2,728,591,971 2.659,793.459

Current assets

Investment in financial assets 14 336,280,046 410,949,766
Receivables and prepayments 15 78,597,741 81,564,960
Assets held for sale 12 206,565,978 203,923,578
Loans receivable 16 18,832,001 17,257,127
Cash and bank balances 13 143,932,704 158,988,060

784,208,470 872,683,497
Total assets 3,512,800,441 3,532.476,956

Current liability
Other payables 17 20,951,340 81,349,149

Non-current liability

Retirement benefit obligations 18 8,225,665 8.632,172
Deferred property lease 19 6,418,035 6,526,715
Net assets 20 3,477,205,401 3,435,968,920

Made up as follows:

Member's fund 21 1,744,099.632 1,721.565.892
Other fund 22 533,279,754 533,279,754
Reserve funds 23 14,568,591 14,568,591
Other reserves 24 153,926,169 153,926,169
Retained surplus 1,031,331,255 1.012,628,514

3,477,205,401 3,435,908,920

Agancial Statements have been approved for issue by the Board of Trustees on May 6, 2022

O o 7

' v ..
Mare Houareau Nisreen Abdulmajid
Chairperson Chief Executive Officer

The notes on pages 8 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN NET ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR BENEFITS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Contribution Income
Compulsory contributions:
- by employees

- by employers

Voluntary contributions:

- by employces

- by employers

Investment income

Interest received by members

Net change in fair value on financial assets
Surplus for the year from investments
Revaluation of property to reserve

Net fair value changes

Total contribution and investment income

Benefits Paid

- Normal Retirement

- Voluntary retirement refund upon retirement
- Death before Normal Retirement

- Permanent Incapacity

- Pre-Migration Retirement

- Surviving Spouse Pension

- L"hil?rm% Pension .
- ‘Jcat] after Norméll Retiremgnt
- Post-Retirement Surviving Spouse

- Post-Retirement Children Pension
- Voluntary retirement contribution refund at 55 years onwards

- Dependent/Severe Disability

- Refund of overpaid contributions
- ‘1{1\- rciu'cmcm benefit
- Other adjustments

Total Benefits paid
(Deficit)/Excess contribution over benefits paid

Adjustment: Prior year deferred lease
Adjustment- Salaries and amortisation (restated)

Overall surplus for the year- net increase in assets available for benefits

Balance at January I,

Balance as at December 31,

The notes on pages 8 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes 2021 2020
SCR SCR
213,810,890 213,027,493
214,389,034 212,094,704
29,022,839 25,851,795
9,739,544 0,257,133
466,962,307 460,231,127
27 37,306,953 35,595,498
Page 6 18,702,741 69,210,602
7 - -
56,009,694 104,815,100
522,972,001 563,046,227
368,478,144
1,730,613
4,245,118
58,448,508
202,740
13,696,747 12,648,606
4,482,746 4,199,655
14,224,134 11.572.678
1,332,423 1216417
14,346,191 8,663,876
25,252 12,516
528,115 -
(5.211) (270,006)
481,735,520 419,707,630
(14,773,213) 40,523,497
18 - -
41,236,481 145,338,506
3,435,968,920  3,290,630.324
3ATI205401  3.435,968.920




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENT OF SURPLUS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Notes 2021 2020
SCR SCR

Income
Interest income 25 47,391,176 45427219
Dividend income 26 21,350,691 22,311,789
Rental income 8d 94,098,444 114,219,599
Profit on sale of investment properties and other financial assets 33 286,778 17.573,504
Profit on disposal of property and equipment - 130,000
Other income - Surcharges 566,019 080.453
Change in provision for bad debts 14 - -
Amortisation of deferred Government Grant 19 108,680 108,680

163,801,788 200,751,244
Expenditure
Interest credited to members 27 37,306,953 33,595,498
Administrative expenses 28 44,448,384 48,629,326
Investment fees 1,122,597 220,448
Events and marketing 1,601,639 2,529.720
Property management expenses 8 (d) 21,964,936 32,069 383
Covid -19 related expenses 271,046 303,239
Depreciation of property and equipment 7 5,557,161 6,049,092
Amortisation of right of use of assets 9 515,464 515,464
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - -
Provision charge for bad and doubtful debts 15 (ii) 1,142,001 4,886,240
Auditors' remuneration 385,000 400,000
Other professional fees 29 3,195,882 3,204,711

117,511,063 134,403,729
Surplus for the year before fair value changes and exchange differences 46,290,725 00,347,515
(Loss)/gain on exchange (44,831,115) 14,571,476
Surplus for the year before fair value changes 1,459,610 80,918,991
Decrease in fair value of quoted equities 14 (d) (2,533,531) (33.307)
Decrease in fair value of subsidiaries (Opportunity Investment Co Ltd) 10 - (3.803,161)
Decrease in fair value of investment properties 8d (15,678,063) (9,328,282)
(Decrease) /Increase in fair value of associate (Seybrew) 11 (a) (i) (795,505) 16,539,884
(Decrease)/ Increase in fair value of associate (Al Salam Bank) 11 (a) (i) (10,778,176) 13,708,224
(Decrease) Increase in fair value of associate (Cable & Wireless) 11 (a) (i) 139,500,802 (175,469,110)
Total fair value changes 109,715,527 (158,445,752)
Other comprehensive income
(Decrease)/Increase in fair value of unquoted equities 14 (d) (92,472,396) 146,746,361
Total other comprehensive income (92.472,390) 146,746,301
Net changes in fair values of investment 17,243,131 (11,699,391)
Surplus for the year 18,702,741 69,219,600
Retained surplus brought forward 1.012,628.514 943,408,914
Retained surplus carried forward 1,031,331,255 1,012,628,514

The notes on pages 8 o 39 form an integral part of these (inancial statements.
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS - YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

Cash generated from operations
Net increase in assets available for benefits
Net cash generated from operations

Adjustments for

Depreciation of property and equipment
Amortization of right of use

Amortization of deferred government grant
Write off of property plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of plant and equipment
Profit on disposal of held for sale assets
Retirement benefit obligation charge
Revaluation of plant and equipment
Provision for bad and doubtful debts

Bad and doubtful debts written off against provision

Fair value loss on investment properties

Fair value gain/(loss) on quoted and unquoted equities
Fair value loss on associates

Fair value loss on subsidiary

Interest receivable

Dividend income

Changes in working capital:
- Deerease/(Inerease) in receivables and prepayments

- Decrease in payables and accruals
Net cash used in operations

Cash flows from investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment

Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of asset held for sale
Proceeds from disposal of investment properties
Purchase of assets held for sale

Purchase of investment properties

Purchase of shares- Cable & Wircless
Repayment of loans by PMC

Purchase of financial asscts

Proceeds from redemption of financial assets
Interest received (net of interest on PMC loan)
Dividend received

Net cash generated from investing activities
Net (Decrease)/inerease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at January 1,
Cash and cash equivalents at December 31,

The notes on pages 8 to 39 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes 2021 2020
SCR SCR
Page 5 41,236,481 145,338,596
41,236,481 145.338.596

7 5,557.161 6,049,691

9 515,464 515404

19 (108,680) (108,680)

- 91.884
- (130,000)

33 (286,778) (11,754,518)

18 (406,507) 1.393.593

7 - -

15 1,142,001 4,886,240

15 - (37,360)

8 19,224,282 0,328,282
14 (d) 95,005,927 (146,713.054)

11 (127,927,121) 145,221,002

10 - 3,863,101

25 (47,391,176) (45427219

26 (21,350,691) (22,311,789

(34,789.637) 90,205,087
1,825,224 (13,080,303)
(60,397,809) (151,115,920)
(93,362,222) (73.997,1906)
7 (2,576,867) (3.481,638)
- 130,000

- 68,500,000

8 5,261,000 -

12 (2,642,400) (1.264.105)

8 (36,797,232) (72.374,133)

11a (iii) - -

16 25,109,336 25,109.335
14 (e) (344,319,818) (351.529.515)
14 (e) 373,383,190 402,971,987

16 & 25 39,538,966 36,252,450
26 21,350,691 22,311,789
78,306,866 126,626,110

(15,055,356) 52.628.914

158,988,060 106,359,146

13 143,932,704 158,988,000




SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

1.

General information

SPF is established under the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005. SPF is domiciled in the Republic of Scychelles
and the address of its registered office is P.O. Box 576, Caravelle House, Victoria. Mah¢, Seychelles.

Investments made by SPF as required under Section 50 of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005 are disclosed in
the notes to the financial statements.

These financial statements will be presented to the Minister responsible for Finance, laid before the National
Assembly by the Minister responsible for Finance and made available under SPF’s website in accordance with
Section 33 of the SPF Act, 2005.

Type of pension systent

SPF operates a Pay-As-You-Go pension plan, which is a solidarity between generations. This means that the
working gencration of today pays for retirees of today and the next generation pays for tomorrow’s retirees. The
pension plan is a Defined Benefits one where pensions are paid a pre-determined formula as per Regulation 8 (1B)
of the SPF (Benefits) Regulations.

Funding policy

The overriding principle of the SPF’s Funding policy is that contributions are increased in a steady and phased
manner as recommended by SPF’s Actuary and excess funds invested to yield maximum returns on the assets
matching SPF’s liabilities. In other words, funds which are not required for current benefit payments and
administration expenses are invested to provide returns to assist in sustaining the SPF in the medium to long-term.
As at 31,12.2021, SPF had around 65% of its members below the age of 45, which means that SPF can invest the
same percentage of its funds for longer than 15 years, as it only needs to meet the long-term liabilities of these
members after 15 years.

Valuation of SPF

Under Section 55 of the SPF Act 2005, an actuarial valuation of SPF shall be carried out every three years by an
approved actuary. The last actuarial valuation exercise of SPF was undertaken by BBL World Actuaries from
Quebec, Canada in 2019 for the year ending 31* December 2018. The next actuarial valuation will be undertaken
in 2022 for the year ending 31*" December 2021.

Significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policics adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied to all the year’s presented unless otherwise stated.

The financial statements are presented in Seychelles Rupees (SCR).

The Financial Statements of SPF comply with the “Public Enterprise Monitoring Commission Act, 20137, including
any amendments thereof, and have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS). The Financial Statements have been prepared under the historical cost concept, except as disclosed in the
accounting policies. Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for
goods and services.

(a) Basis of preparation

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires
management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the SPF’s accounting policies. The arcas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial
statements are disclosed in note 5 (Critical accounting estimates and judgements). The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgements about carrying values of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

8
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SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021

4. Significant accounting policies (cont...)
(a) Basis of preparation (cont...)

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Consolidation

SPF adopted IFRS 10 (Consolidated financial statements) consolidation exemption with regards to ‘investment
entities’. SPF believes that a class of entity (an investment entity) uses a different business model to most other
entities. It manages all of its investments on a fair value basis, whether they are simple investments, associates or
controlled. It provides fair value information to its users, and that fair value information is more useful for decision-
making than consolidated information. All the subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures held as investments are
measured in accordance with IFRS 9 (Financial instruments).

SPF further noted that preparing consolidated financial statements for such entities could hinder users™ ability to
assess their financial position and results; this is because consolidated financial statements emphasise the financial
position, operations and cash flow of their investees, rather than those of the entities themselves.

[FRS 10 requires an entity that 1s a parent, to present consolidated financial statements. The amendment provides a
limited scope exception to parents that are ‘investment entities™. If the entity is an investment entity under the
standard, it is exempt from consolidating underlying investees that it controls: instead. it is required to account for
these subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss under IFRS 9, “Financial instruments’.

The standard defines an investment entity as, an entity that:

e obtains funds from one or more investors for the purpose of providing those investor(s) with investment
management services;

e commits to its investors that its business purpose is to invest funds solely for returns from capital
appreciation, investment income or both; and

e Measures and evaluates the performance of substantially all of'its investments on a fair value basis.

For an entity to qualify as an investment entity it must meet the above definition. The entity must also consider the
following typical characteristics of an imvestment entity:

holding more than one investment;

having more than one investor;

having investors that are not the entity’s related parties: and

Having ownership interests in the form of equity or similar interests.

As it stands the very purpose of a pension fund is to accumulate contributions from both employers and emplovees
and to invest these funds for investment returns (both capital appreciation and investment income) and to distribute
these returns once its members reach the age requirements in annuity until death and/or to their beneficiaries where
applicable.

The Board has found that the SPF complies with all the definitions of an investment entity and possesses all the

characteristics of an investment entity; namely:

e SPF holds various financial asset investments;

e SPF nvestors include all Seychellois-employed residents;

e while SPF may have a few members who are related to SPF, this is purely incidental since SPF supports,
by definition, all Seychellois residents and this does not affect compliance with this characteristic;

e The members have ownership interests in SPF represented by the Member’s fund displayed in equity
under the Statement of Financial Position.
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(b) Going concern

The Board of Trustees have assessed SPF’s ability to continue as a going concern and are satisfied that it has the
resources to continue in business for the foreseeable future. Furthermore, the Board of Trustees are not aware of
any material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt upon SPF’s ability to continue as a going concern and
they do not intend either to liquidate or to cease operations of SPF. Therefore, the financial statements continue to
be prepared on the going concern basis.

(¢) Comparative information

The previous year figures and phrases have been reclassified whenever necessary to conform to current year
presentation,

(d) Changes in accounting policies
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those used in the previous financial year, except for the

following new standards and amendments to IFRS that are mandatorily effective for accounting periods beginning
on or after January 1, 2021:

New standards, improvements, interpretations and amendments issued

e Amendments to IFRS 3 - Business Combinations

o Amendments to IFRS 4 - Insurance Contracts

e Amendments to IFRS 7 - Financial Instruments: Disclosures

e Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments

e Amendments to IFRS 16 - Leases

o Amendments to [AS 39 - Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

e Revisions to the Conceptual Framework: Amendments to IAS 1, IAS 32, [AS 36 and 1AS 38

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2: Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

The amendments provide temporary reliefs which address the financial reporting effects when an interbank offered
rate (IBOR) is replaced with an alternative nearly risk-free interest rate (RFR). The amendments include the
following practical expedients:

e A practical expedient to require contractual changes., or changes to cash flows that are directly required by the
reform, to be treated as changes to a floating interest rate, cquivalent to a movement in a market rate of interest.

e Permit changes required by IBOR reform to be made to hedge designations and hedge documentation without the
hedging relationship being discontinued.

e Provide temporary relief to entities from having to meet the separately identifiable requirement when an RFR
instrument is designated as a hedge of a risk component.

These amendments had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Company. The Company intends
to use the practical expedients in future periods if they become applicable.

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021 Amendments to IFRS 16

On May 28, 2020, the TASB issued Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions - amendment to IFRS 16 Leascs. The
amendments provide relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16 guidance on lease modification accounting for rent
concessions arising as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic. As a practical expedient, a lessec may elect
not to assess whether a Covid-19 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease modification. A lessee that makes
this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the Covid-19 related rent concession the same
way it would account for the change under IFRS 16 if the change were not a lease modification.
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(d) Changes in accounting policies/ Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions beyond June 30, 2021
Amendments to IFRS 16 (cont...)

The amendment was intended to apply until June 30, 2021, but as the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic is continuing,
on March 31, 2021, the IASB extended the period of application of the practical expedient to June 30, 2022, The
amendment applies to annual reporting periods beginning on or after April 1, 2021. However, the Company has not
received Covid-19-related rent concessions but plans to apply the practical expedient if it becomes applicable within
allowed period of application.

The following new accounting standards, improvements, interpretations, and amendments have been issued. but are
not mandatory until the dates shown. and hence have not been early adopted by the Company in preparing the
financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2021,

«  Amendments to IAS | Presentation of Financial Statements (January 1, 2023)

+  Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment (January 1, 2022)

* Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets (January |,

2022)
*  Amendments to IFRS 3 Business Combinations (January 1, 2022)
+ IFRS 17 & its amendments Insurance Contracts (January 1, 2023)
+ Annual improvements IFRS Standards 2018-2020 Cycle (January 1, 2022)

IFRS | First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting
Standards (January 1. 2022)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments (January 1, 2022)
IFRS 16 Leases (January 1, 2022)
[AS 41 Agriculture (January 1, 2022)

Management anticipates that all of the above standards, improvements, interpretations, and amendments will be
adopted by the Company to the extent applicable from their effective dates. The adoption of these standards,
improvements, interpretations, and amendments is not expected to have a material impact on the financial statements
of the Company in the year of their initial application.

(e¢) Financial Instruments
Recognition and initial measurement

Financial instruments are recognised in the statement of financial position when SPF becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the financial instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is measured initially at fair value plus, for an item not at fair value through
profit and loss (FVTPL), transaction costs that are directly attributable to its acquisition or issue.

Financial assets: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses
On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at: amortised cost: Fair Value through Other

Comprehensive Income (FVOCI) - debt investment; FVOCI - equity instrument; or Fair Value through Profit and
Loss (FVTPL).
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(e) Financial Instruments/ Financial assets: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and
losses (cont...)

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as
at FVTPL:

e it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are Solely Payments of Principal and Interest
(SPPI).

A debt investment is measured at FVOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at
FVTPL:

e itis held within a business model whose objective is achicved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling
financial assets; and
e its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are SPP1 on the principal amount outstanding.

The financial statements do not include any debt investments measured at FVOCI.

On initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, SPF may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in the investment’s fair value in OCI. This clection is made on an investment-by-investment
basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOCI as described above are measured at
FVTPL. On initial recognition, SPF may irrcvocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Business model assessment

SPF makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at a portfolio level
because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to management. The
information considered includes:

e The stated policics and objectives for the portfolio and the operation of those policics in practice. These include
whether management’s strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular interest
rate profile, matching the duration of the financial asscts to the duration of any related liabilities, or expected cash
outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of assets;

o the risks that affect performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business model)
and how those risks are managed;

e how managers of the business are compensated — e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the assets
managed or contractual cash flows collected; and

e The frequency, volume, and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the SPF’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPIs
For the purpose of this assessment, “principal” is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial recognition.
“Interest’ is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk associated with the principal

amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk
and administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.
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4. Significant accounting policies (cont...)

(e) Financial Instruments/ Assessment whether contractual cash flows are SPPIs (cont...)

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, SPF considers the
contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term
that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, SPF considers:

e contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows;

o terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable rate features;

» prepayment and extension features; and

e Terms that limit SPF’s claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

A prepayment feature is consistent with the solely payments of principal and interest criterion if the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for carly termination of the contract. Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a significant discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires
prepayment at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid)
contractual interest (which may also include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated
consistent with this criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature 1s insignificant at mnitial recognition.

Reclassifications
Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless SPF were to change its business
model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets would be reclassified on the first day

of the first reporting period following the change in the business model.

Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including
at FVTPL any interest or dividend income and expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are

recognised in profit or loss.

Equity investments (listed) and unlisted private equities which are managed and their
performance 1s evaluated, on a fair value basis and are designated as FVTPL are
included in this category.
Financial assets These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
at amortised cost rate. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment losses. Interest income, foreign
exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or
loss on derecognition is recognised in profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents, fixed deposits, contribution receivable from members, rental
receivables, loans and receivables and investments in treasury assets are included in this

calegory.
Equity These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as
investments at income in profit or loss unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the
FVOCI cost of the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and are never

reclassified to profit or loss.

Unlisted private equities which are managed and their performance 1s evaluated, on a
fair value basis and are not designated as FVTPL are included in this category.
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4, Significant accounting policies (cont...)
(e) Financial Instruments (cont...)
Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilitics are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified as at
FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial recognition.
Financial liabilitics at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense,
are recognised in profit or loss. The financial statements do not include any FVTPL financial liabilities.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. Interest
cxpensc and foreign exchange gains and losses arc recognised in profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss. This includes deposits from tenants and other payables.

Derecognition
Financial assets

SPF derecogniscs a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset expire, or
it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction which substantially all of the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which SPF neither transfers nor retains substantially
all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

Financial liabilities

SPF derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire. SPF
also derccognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified liability are
substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, SPF currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends either to
scttle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and scettle the liability simultancously.

Impairment of financial assets

The impairment for financial assets is derived based on an “expected credit loss” (ECL) model and applies to financial
asscts measured at amortised cost and debt investments at FVOCI, but not to investments in equity instruments.

ECL model is the impairment method prescribed under IFRS 9 on “Financial Instruments” and will be calculated by
multiplying the current gross receivable balance by the probability adjusted loss rate. The impairment methodology
applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk
has not increased significantly, twelve month expected credit loss (*ECL’) is used to provide for impairment loss,
otherwisc lifetime ECL is used. However, only in casc of trade reccivables, SPF applics the simplified approach
which requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition of the receivables. SPF measures
the impairment by applying a predetermined percentage to the receivables falling under different age buckets and is
not significantly deviated had it been computed based on expected credit loss model.
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(e) Financial Instruments (cont...)
Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off (either partially or in full) to the extent that there is no
realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when SPF determines that the debtor does not have assets
or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However,
financial assets that arc written oft could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with SPF’s
procedures for recovery of amounts due.

(f) Property and equipment

Capitalisation Policy for the acquisition, management, sale, and disposal of SPF-owned fixed Assets were
implemented during the year. [ts aim 1s to establish standard guidelines for capitalisation of fixed assets owned by
SPF in conformity with IFRS and SPF’s valuation policy and is followed for the accounting and management of all
SPF-owned fixed assets. These relate to all transactions relating to the acquisition, maintenance, sale, construction,
and final disposal of SPF’s fixed assets which will ensure transparency, consistency, and accountability in the
accounts.

Land and building, held for use in the production or supply of goods or for administrative purposes, are stated at
their fair value, based on annual valuations by external independent valuers, less subsequent depreciation for
buildings. Any accumulated depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount
of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. All other property and equipment are
stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to SPF and the cost of the item
can be measured reliably.

Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation are credited to revaluation surplus in the statements of net
assets available for benefits. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same asset are charged against
revaluation surplus in the statements of net assets available for benefits directly; all other decreases are changed to
the income and expenditure accounts.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write off their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives as follows;

Years
Buildings 50
Improvement 15
Equipment 5
Furniture & Fittings 10
Motor Vehicle 5

The assets” residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of cach reporting
period.

Where the carrying amount of asset is greater than its estimated recoverable amount, it is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals of property and equipment are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying
amount and are included in the Income and Expenditure Account. On disposal of revalued assets, the amounts
included in revaluation surplus are transferred to retained camings.

n
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4, Significant accounting policies (cont...)

(g) Investment properties
Properties held to carn rent/or for capital appreciation or both are classified as investment properties. Investment
propertics are carried at fair value, representing open-market value determined annually. Changes in fair values are

recognized in the Income and Expenditure Account and subsequently in net assets available.

Investment properties are transferred to property and equipment, or asset held for sale when they cease to meet the
recognition criteria.

(h) Investment in subsidiary
Consolidation

The subsidiaries of SPF arc not consolidated due to the application of IFRS 10 consolidation exemption for
‘investment entities’.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are measured and accounted for at FVTPL. Fair value gains or losses on subsidiaries are
recognised on a separate line on the income statement.

(i) Investment in associates
Separate Financial Statements

Investments in associates are measured and accounted for at FVTPL, Fair value gains or losses on associated are
recognised on a separate line on the income statement.

(j) Contributions receivable

Contributions receivable arc recognized when due which is 21° of the second month. Contributions receivable are
stated at their nominal value as reduced by appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts.

The nominal value of contributions receivable is assumed to approximate its fair value.
(k) Benefits payable

Benefits payable are stated at their nominal value.

The nominal value of benefits payable is assumed to approximate its fair value.
() Receivables

Receivables and prepayments are recognized initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for impairment.

(m) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand. deposits held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of 3 months or less and are measured at amortised cost.

(n) Foreign currencies
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated to Seychelles Rupees at exchange rates at the dates of the

transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting date are retranslated
to Seychelles Rupees at the exchange rate at that date.
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(n) Foreign currencies (cont...)

Foreign currency gains or losses on monetary items are the differences between the amortised cost in Seychelles
Rupees at the beginning of the period, adjusted for effective interest and payments during the period, and the
amortised cost in foreign currency translated at the exchange rate at the end of the year.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies that are measured in terms of historical cost are translated
using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency differences arising on the translation are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Due to Corona Virus Pandemic, there has been substantial devaluation of Seychelles Rupees as compared to the
major foreign currencies. As at yvear end, the main exchange rates against the Seychelles Rupees were as follows:

Currency Exchange Rates as at % Change
31-Dec-31 3i1-Dec-21

US $: SCR 14.68 21.58 -31.97%

EURO:SCR 16.58 26.43 -37.27%

At the year-end or at reporting periods, all assets and habilities will be valued as per the Investment Policy or the
CBS par rate as per the Finance policy. These shall also be treated in accordance with IFRS. The translation at year
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the
statement of comprehensive income within “finance income or cost”. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the Statement of comprehensive income within ‘other (losses)/gains net’.

Non-monetary items that are measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate
at the date of the transaction.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date the fair value was determined.

Translation difference on non-monetary items, such as equities held at FVTPL, are reported as part of the fair value
gain or loss. Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities classified as available-for-sale financial
assets, are included in the other reserve in equity.

Currency Exchange Rates as at % Change
5-Apr-22 31-Dec-21
US $: SCR 14.36 14.68 2%

EURO:SCR 1591 16.58 4%

(0) lmpairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortization and are tested annually for impairment.
Assets that are subject to amortization are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s
fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units).
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(p) Leases
Leases as /(?‘S',S‘(’(’

The amount paid at inception by SPF to acquire lease interest on land has been capitalized as right of use asset and
depreciated over the lease term.

Leases as lessor

SPF leases out its investment propertics and arc classificd as operating leases, because they do not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to the ownership of the assets.

Lease rental charges are charged to the income and expenditure account on a straight-line-basis over the period of

lease.

(q) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when a customer obtains control of a good or service and thus has the ability to direct the use
and obtain the benefits from the good or service. The SPF recognises revenue when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured, it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and specific criteria have been
met for each of the SPF’s activities.

Ré.’f?.f(i'.” inconte
Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term. When the SPF
provides incentives to its tenants, the cost of incentives is recognised over the lease term, on a straight-line basis, as
a reduction of rental income.

Interest income

Interest income or expense is recognised using the effective interest rate.

The *effective interest rate” is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through the
expected life of the financial assets to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

In calculating interest income, the effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset (when
the asset is not credit-impaired). However, for financial assets that have become credit-impaired subsequent to initial
recognition, the interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset. If the asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation of interest income reverts to the gross
basis.
Dividend income

Dividend income is recognised in profit or loss on the date on which the right to receive payment is established. For
quoted equity securities, this is usually the ex-dividend date. For unquoted equity securities, this is usually the date
on which the sharcholders approve the payment of a dividend.

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL

Net income from financial instruments at FVTPL includes all realised and unrealised fair value changes and foreign
exchange differences, interest, and dividend income.
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4. Significant accounting policies (cont...)
(r) Employment Compensation

As per the Employment Act of Seychelles, compensation obligation is only paid to employces leaving after five
years ol continued service. The entitlement is usually conditional on the employee remaining in service up to
existing and the completion of a minimum service period. In Seychelles, this is conditional on the employee
remaining in employment for at least five years.

The obligation has been determined using the method as per the Seychelles Employment Act and management has
estimated that the amount of liability provided will not be materially difterent had it been computed by an external
actuary.

(s) Tax

In accordance with paragraph 69 of the Seychelles Pension Act, 2005, SPF is exempt from stamp duty, business
tax, trade tax, goods and services tax and all other taxes, fees and duties on its assets, documents, instruments,
profits, operations, and properties.

However, Seychelles Revenue Commission (SRC) has registered SPF as a Value Added Tax Business on the 1%
January 2020; and SPI deduct income tax for its employees’ salary for onward remittance to SRC including tax on
the Income and Non-Monetary Benefits Act.

(t) Accruals

Accruals are recognised when SPF has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is
probable that an outflow of resources, that can be reliably estimated, will be required to settle the obligation.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

SPF makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of asscts and liabilitics within next year are discussed below.

(a) Classification of financial assets

SPF follows the guidance of International Financial Reporting Standard (IFRS) 9 — “Financial instruments™ on
classifying non-derivative financial assets in accordance with SPF’s business model and cash flow test. This
classification requires significant judgement. In making this judgement. SPF evaluates its intention and ability to
hold such investments to collect contractual cash flows or to achieve an objective by both collecting contractual
cash flows and selling financial assets.

(b) Impairment of financial assets

SPF follows the guidance of IFRS 9 ECL method to determine whether its financial assets require impairment.
Expected credit losses are calculated by identifying scenarios in which a loan or receivable defaults; estimating the
cash shortfall that would be incurred in each scenario 1f a default were to happen; multiplying that loss by the
probability of the default happening: and summing the results of all such possible default events. This process
requires significant judgement. In making this judgement, SPF considers all facts and circumstances that are
available at the reporting date.

(¢) Impairment of other assets

At each balance sheet date, management reviews and assesses the carrying amounts of the other assets and where
relevant writes them down to their recoverable amounts based on the best estimates.

92 Seychelles Pension Fund Annual Report 2021



SEYCHELLES PENSION FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021
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(d) Limitations of sensitivity analysis

Sensitivity analysis in respect of market risk demonstrates the effect of a change in a key assumption while other
assumptions remain unchanged. In reality, there is a correlation between the assumptions and other factors. It should
also be noted that these sensitivities are non-linear and larger or smaller impacts should not be interpolated or
extrapolated from these results,

Sensitivity analysis does not take into consideration that SPF’s asset and liabilities are actively managed. Other
limitations include the use of hypothetical market movements to demonstrate potential risk that only represent SPF’s
views of possible near-term market changes that cannot be predicted with any certainty.

(e) Contributions receivable

As per SPF Act 2005, contributions are due on the 21 day of the following month. At year end, contributions for
the month of December are due to be paid in January the following year which is not in the financial year. Therefore,
an estimate is made based on the actual contribution received of the preceding months.

(f) Fair Value Estimation

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of the
reporting period. A market is regarded as active if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from for example,
a stock exchange and those prices represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm’s length
basis.

The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the SPF is the current bid price. These instruments are
included in level 1. Instruments included in level 1 comprise primarily quoted equity investments classified as
trading securities,

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable market data where it is available and rely
as little as possible on specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable,
the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level
3.

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets, including their levels in the fair

value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets not measured at fair value if the
carrying amount is a rcasonable approximation of fair value:
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6.

Risk management
The Board of Trustees has the overall responsibility of determining the risk management objectives and policies of
SPF. It also delegates the authority for designing and implementing risk management processes to the risk
management function.
SPF’s activities expose the institution to a variety of risks. The overall objective of the Board of Trustees is to set
policies that seck to mitigate and reduce risks as far as possible, without unduly affecting the competitiveness and
flexibility of the institution’s operations. Further details regarding some of the main risks are set out below:

(a) Investment risk

There are some risks that are directly linked to the investments of SPF. Sustained poor performance would lead to
insufficient returns that are necessary to support the institution’s long-term sustainability. SPF has adopted a prudent
approach to asset management that is likely to generate moderate, yet regular returns. The primary control measure
is the regular appraisal of SPF’s assets and investment policy by the Board of Trustees upon the advice of the
Actuary and other external advisors as appropriate.
The following types of investment risks can be justified:

Interest rate risk

The risk that falling interest rates will reduce investment income on the assets or lead to falling values of fixed
income instruments.

SPF finances its operations through operating cash flows which are principally denominated in Seychelles Rupee.

Several specific risk measures may be cited:

e  SPF’s primary interest rate risk relates to interest-bearing investments. The information on maturity dates and

effective interest rates of financial assets are disclosed under Note 14.

e SPF does not borrow, so the cost of borrowing is nil and unaffected by rate rises.
e  There is a loan portfolio of loans to PMC at “fixed” rates. Although these rates arc adjusted where the spread

between SPF’s rates and bank rates becomes too significant, there 1s a certain inertia that tends to protect SPF
from sudden or temporary falls.

Sensitivity analysis

If interest rates have been 100 basis points higher/lower and all other variables were kept constant, SPF’s surplus
for the year ended December 31, 2021 would be impacted as follows:

Amortised Cost Financial

Assets
2021 2020
SR’000 SR’000
Impact on surplus for the year (+/- 100 basis 47 46

points)

22
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6. Risk management (cont...)
(a) Investment risk (cont...)
Price risk

The risk that a sudden fall in asset values restricts SPF’s ability to pay benefits. There are several ways in which
SPF manages this risk:

e Diversification — the assets are held in a wide range of different investments, thus limiting the probability
of all assets falling in values simultaneously. However, there are few investment mediums.

e Liquidity — great care is taken to ensure that SPF should not need to realize potentially volatile assets when
their values are less.

SPF is exposed to equity securities price risk because of investments held by SPF and classified on the statement of
net assets available-for-sale,

The table below summarises the impact of increases/decreases in fair value of the investments on SPF’s fair value
of financial assets. The analysis is based on the assumption that the fair value had increased/decreased by 100 basis

point.

Financial assets at

FVTPL
2021 2020
SR’000 SR’000
Impact of change in fair value of (+/- 100 basis points) 17 11

Liquidity risk

The risk that cash flow requirements will force SPF to realize an investment on poor terms, either through the
investment’s unmarketability (a loan) or illiquidity (a building). or simply because the asset value is temporarily
depressed (a share).

SPF controls this risk primarily via a detailed annual budget to ensure that the investment strategy will generate
positive cash flows, including where necessary the proceeds of the sale of certain assets. Cash flow forecasts help
SPF to take appropriate actions.

SPF also has a portfolio of liquid assets, the maturities of which falls either before or concurrent to the maturity of
its obligations.

Procedures have also been established throughout SPF so that all users channel their requirements to the finance
function. This ensures that budget exercise is carried out in an effective manner.
Management monitors rolling forecasts of SPEF’s Liquidity reserve on the basis of expected cash flow and does not
foresee any major liquidity risk over the short to medium term.

Credit risk
The risk that a member defaults on his contributions or a possible default by a tenant.

The risk 1s minimised by the fact that contribution to SPF by active workers are mandatory and contributions are
deducted directly from employees’ salaries and remitted to SPF. There is no history of material bad debts from
contributions. SPF has established procedures to ensure that rental agreements are made with tenants with an
appropriate credit history and through a newly introduced standing of order monthly rent payments which are
assumed. Therefore, risks of bad debts are considered to be low.

23
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6. Risk management (cont...)
(a) Investment risk/ Credit risk (cont...)

A Debtor Management Policy was implemented late in the year. The policy aims to put in place effective procedures
for SPF to manage its debts in an efficient manner.

Currency risk

SPF’s activitics arc not exposed to currency risk. However, SPF requires foreign exchange for developing its
overseas investment which are met through requests with financial institutions.

Only a small percentage of the portfolio is invested overscas mainly in listed forcign market and recently a foreign
bank.

Counter party risk
The risk that an external fund manager defaults on its contractual responsibilitics.
The risk is mitigated via the following measures:

e All fund managers are subject to rigorous in-house assessment and due diligence from well known, independent
external experts prior to appointment, and to regular appraisal thereafter.

e  Oversecas fund managers are generally large, well-established organisations with sound reputations and track
records.

e  SPF seeks independent professional advice on overseas fund managers and required regular reporting in
accordance with its investment policy.

(b) Economic risk

This corresponds to the risk that external economic events (other than those specifically related to investments) will
weaken SPF’s financial position. Two examples of such risk are apparent:

Industry risk

The risk that the cconomy collapses, leading to redundancics, carly retirements, and cessation of contributions,
amongst other wider social, political, and economic effects in Seychelles. The primary likely effect on SPF of such
an outcome would be an merease in benefits outgo (carly retirements) and an accelerated shift from positive net
cash flow to negative net cash flow. Cash flow analysis of this kind of scenario suggests that realization of assets of
SPF would provide the necessary liquidity to counter the cash flow need.

Inflation risk

Whilst the Central Bank has a policy of price stability, one cannot assume that a small, isolated country such as
Seychelles will always be able to control inflation. Inflation would not necessarily be a problem for SPF if it was
accompanied by compensatory increase if onc could not necessarily always count on the alignment of inflation and
yields.

SPF protects itself in the following ways:

e Real assets, (property) would be expected to appreciate in value both in terms of capital and income growth,
Overseas holdings would tend to buoy up returns since one might expect local inflation to be closely linked to
Rupee depreciation,

e  When considering the purchase of Government debt instruments, SPF demands a significant yield
compensation for inflation risk on long term instruments.

e For pension there is a capping of 5% inflation.

24
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6. Risk management (cont...)

(c) Operational risk
The risk that SPF may incur financial losses due to negligence or fraud.

Operational risk is, however, remote since SPE’s operations are supported by a strong management structure and
controls in place. These activities are under close supervision of management, in turn monitored by the Board of
Trustees who is given a monthly report from the CEO.

There is also an Internal Audit department assessing and testing all risks and internal controls helping to reinforce
any shortfalls that could come across. A Risk Department, a Quality Assurance Analyst and compliance function
under the Business Development and Compliance Section also does thorough checks and risk mitigation processes
to ensure that there are no malpractices and fraud.

(d) Legal risk

The risk that SPF commits an act that is subsequently deemed illegal and would be subject to penalty. This risk is
somewhat limited since SPF is governed principally under a single, clear piece of legislation: The “Seychelles
Pension Act, 20057, All the activities of SPF are regulated by the Act. and SPF are regulated by PEMC. SPF is also
accountable to the Minister responsible for Finance for submission of its Annual report, a copy of which is also
submitted to the National Assembly by the Minister. SPF also has in place a legal and compliance function to ensure
compliance to legal obligations and a legal counsel on retainer.

(e) Disaster recovery risk
The risk that a disaster wipes out SPF’s capacity to continue its operations.
The most obvious example is that the offices burn down, destroying all written and electronic records.

The written records would be lost if the entire offices were destroyed. Such loss is not considered to be significant,
although it would represent an inconvenience. This is because all major files are stored electronically and centrally
and are subject to rigorous external backup procedures. In particular, the backups are also held off-site. On a related
note, internet security issues have also been addressed. A single, isolated PC is dedicated to internet, and all external
discs must be scanned on this machine prior to contact with the network. The presence of IT Office adds to the
security of the back-ups of electronic information. All records of members have also been digitalised. IT Section
also undertakes a vigorous audit of its IT System, practices, and users every 2 years by an independent external [T
auditor from Mauritius.

As to the risk to SPF of death of one or more of its staff, it is our view that there is no “key man” such that this
would materially affect SPF. There is also a clear and well-defined succession planning within SPF, as per its Human
Resources Policy.

(f) Reputational risk
The risk that certain activities of SPF be badly perceived by the public, thus damaging SPF’s capacity to operate.

SPF’s policy of transparency and open communication together with corporate governance framework will protect
it from this risk. Although reputation is a fragile quality, SPF has established a sound and credible reputation. SPF
has always promoted transparency especially with members, notably via dissemination of information and
explanatory literature. It's very detailed annual report and financial statements each year also promotes clarity and
full comprehensive details of all SPF’s activities for the year. Website and other social media platforms are also
well used as regular communication and information channels to all SPF stakeholders, especially its members. SPF
has put in place its Corporate Communication Policy in 2020 aimed at guiding the extent, quality and output of
communication with SPF’s external stakeholders and on the adherence to and quality of internal communications
in line with SPI’s approved standards, as required in its Act, Regulations and Internal policies and procedures.

%]
h
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6. Risk management (cont...)
(H Reputational risk (cont...)

SPF also plans to introduce a culture of best practice in every segment of its activities by benchmarking on whatever
appropriate procedures are applied by enterprises around the world (e.g., custodians, independent fund managers,
application of International Accounting Standards, etc.).

(g) Compliance risk/ Anti- Money Laundering and prevention of Terrorism financing

SPF complies fully with Anti- Money Laundering Act. 2020 and Countering of Financial Terrorism Act, 2020 and
its amendments thereof. SPI observes all requirements and policies to ensure that there is no money laundering
and terrorist financing sources of funds. SPF’s main sources of funds come via the banking system through
transactions from employers and employees mostly via SPF’s bank accounts with minimal cash. The other source
of funds is from investment returns all from banking system. All banks are supervised by Central Bank of Seychelles
and have stringent Anti- Money Laundering systems in place. Other mechanisms that SPF observes are:

e Implementing its anti-money laundering and countering financing of terrorism anti-terrorism financing policies
in place since 2019. This policy is being updated to ensure full compliance with the AML/CFT Act 2020 and
its amendments.

Employee training in AML.

Independent audits.

Policies and procedures to detect and report suspicious transactions and ensure compliance with the laws,
Timely communications with the Financial Intelligence Unit (FTU).

Submitting information to FIU, as requested.

There were no reported non-compliance cases concerning AML/ CFT at SPF in 2021.
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7.  PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

COST

At January 1, 2020

Additions

T'ransfer to investment propertics

Direct write off

Disposal during the vear

At December 31, 2020
Additions
At December 31, 2021

ACCUMULATED
DEPRECIATION

At January 1, 2020
Charge for the year
Disposals

At December 31,2020
Charge for the vear
At December 31, 2021
NET BOOK VALUE

At December 31, 2021

At December 31, 2020
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Buildings on

Leaschold land Furniture
and and Motor
improvements Equipment fittings vehicles Total
SCR SCR SCR SCR SCR
41,194,420 19,113,732 11.287.82 3,218,899 74,814,875
- 2,595,244 332,730 553,664 3.481.638
(7.941,302) y - § (7.941.302)
- - (91,884) - (O1,884)
- (137,278) (26.325) (518.675) (682.278)
33,253,118 21,571,698 11,502,345 3,253,888 69,581,049
1,003,649 1,491,562 81,656 - 2,576,867
34,256,767 23,063,260 11,584,001 3,253,888 72,157,916
23.997.539 11,201,065 5,490,424 2,734,802 43,423,830
2.709.058 2,075,347 963,726 301,561 6,049,692
- (107,535) (56.069) (518.675) (682.279)
26,706,597 13,168,877 6,398,081 2,517,688 48,791,243
2,180,194 2,188,601 967,837 220,529 5,557,161
28.886.791 15,357,478 7,365,918 2,738,217 54,348,404
5,369,976 7,705,782 4,218,083 515,671 17,809,512
6,546,521 8,402,821 5,104,264 736,200 20,789,806
27
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(¢) The land and buildings were valued at December 31, 2020 by an independent valuer. The value of the land and buildings is subject to
review as per the revised Valuation Policy for Investment Assets approved by the Board of Trustees in November 2020.The valuation and

accounting recommended approaches guided under IAS40 for valuation for investment properties and also as per [IFRS 16 for leasces.

8. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

2021 2020
SCR SCR
(a) At fair value
The movement of the investment properties during the year is as follows,
At January 1, 1,395,698.478 1,528.634.904
Additions 36,797,232 72.374.132
Transfer from property and equipment - 7,941,302
Decrease in_fair values:
Investment properties (15,678,063) (9.328,282)
Assets held for sale (2,642.400) -
Revaluation of investment properties to reserve account (note (g)) (903.819.00) -
I'ransfer to assets held for sale (note 12) (4,974.222) (203,923,578)
At December 31, 1,408,297,206 1,395,698,478

(b)  The value of the ir

restment properties are subject to review every two years by an independent professionally qualified valuer, on an open-
market basis with existing tenancies based on a Valuation of Properties Policy approved by the Board. A Valuation Committee has also
been set up since 2018 to review the value of the investment propertics on an annual basis. The Valuation Committee is chaired by an
independent | experienced and qualified professional who is well versed in valuation of land. All properties were revalued in Year 2021 for
a total of re-evaluation loss SCR 19.2m for 25 properties. | property with a book value of SCR 4.9m was disposed for SCR 5.3m.

(c) The fair value of the properties has been valued by an external valuer and administered by the Investment Department under the Property
Valuation Committee, chaired by an independent individual.

(d) If Investment properties had been carried at cost less accumulated depreciation, the carrying amount would have been as follows:

2021 2020
SCR SCR SCR SCR
Land Building Total Total
Cost 176,774,099 755,237,622 932,011,721 932,011,721
Accumulated depreciation - (120,851,721) (120,851,721) (105.746,970)
Net book value 176,774,099 634,385,901 811,160,000 826,264,751
2021 2020
SCR SCR
(e) The following amounts have been recognised in profit or loss:
Rental income 110,129,927 118,368,343
Concession provided to tenants (16,031,483) (4.148,744)
Net rental income 94,098,444 114,219,599
Property Management expenses:
Direct operating expenses generating rental income - -
Direct operating expenses (21,964,936) (32.069,385)
Profit arising from investment property 72,133,508 52,150,214
Decrease in fair value (15,678,063) (9,328,282)
Surplus after fair value changes 56,455,445 72,821,932

(f)  As at 31 December 2021, 3 properties under construction are carried at cost for a total amount of SCR 175.3m (2020: SCR 138.9m) of
which 1 is nearing completion and is expected to be completed early 2022, The 2 other properties are expectled to be developed at a later
stage.

The fair value changes of the properties which are leased from the government of Seychelles at one rupee are direetly recognised in other
reserves. This relates to 4 properties with a total deferred income of SCR 108,680 (2020 : SCR 108,680).

)
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9. RIGHT OF USE ON ASSETS
SPF leased a land located at Caravelle House 1o run its business for a period of 97 years. The initial deposit on the lease amounting to SR
50 million paid in 2006 is being amortised over the term of lease. The movement during the year is as follows:
2021 2020
Cost SCR SCR
As at 1 January & 31 December 50,000,000 50,000,000
Amortisation
At 1 January, 7.860.825 7,345,361
Charge for the year 515.464 315464
At 31 December 8,376,289 7.860.825
Net Book Value
At 31 December 41,623,711 42,139.175
10. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY
(a) Subsidiaries are investees controlled by SPF. The SPF "Controls" an investee if it is exposed to. or has right to, variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
2021 2020
SCR SCR
At fair value,
Sharcholding 100% 100%
Opportunity Investment Company Limited -OICL 40,562,865 40,562,865
2021 2020
SCR SCR
The movement of the investment in subsidiary during the vear is as follows,
Balance as at January 1, 40,562,865 44,426,026
Decrease in fair value - (3.863,161)
Balance as at December, 31 40,562,865 40,562,865
SPF holds 100 shares at SCR 100 per share in OICL as at 31 December 2021 representing a sharcholding of 100%.
(a) Details of the SPF's subsidiary (OICL), are given below:
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OICL
Class of shares held: Ordinary
31 December
100%

Seychelles

Year end:
Proportion of ownership interest and voting power held (direct):
Country of incorporation and residence:

Activity: Investment holding

OICL was incorporated as an investment vehicle solely for the purpose of acquiring shares in SACOS Group Limited (SACOS). OICL
currently holds 386,313 shares in SACOS which represents an ownership interest of 19.31%.

The fair value of OICL is derived from the fair value of the SACOS shares it holds. At the end of the reporting period the value per
SACOS share as listed on the stock exchange was SCR 105 per share. (2020: SCR 105 per share).

Total value of SACOS shares held in OICL as at 31 December 2021 is 386,313 at SCR 105 each (2020: SCR 105 per share).

I'he SPF has also directly invested in SACOS with a wotal investment ol 26,569 shares which represents an ownership interest of 1.33%.
T'his investment has been classified under linancial assets measured at Tair value through profit or loss.

As at 31 December 2021, SPF holds 20.64% in SACOS directly and indirectly.
29
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10.

(b)

(a)

INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY (CONT...)

Details of the SPF's subsidiary at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Name

Principal activity

Opportunity Investment Company Limited

Investment holding

(i) Summarized statement of Financial position and statement of profit or loss and other income as per audited financial statements:

Assets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Equity

Revenue

Total comprehensive profit or (loss) for the year

(i) Summarised cash flow information:

(iil)

Operating activitics

Investment activities

Financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

2021 2020
SCR'000 SCR'000
147 129
40,562 40,562
36 9
40,673 40,682
1,890 (40,603)
1,918 (71)
- (192)
1.918 (263)

There were no commitment and contingencies as at the reporting period

INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES

Associates are those entities in which the SPF has significant influence, but not control, over variable returns through its power over

investee, Significant influence is presumed to exist when the SPF holds 20% or more of voting power of another entity.

At fair value

Seychelles Breweries Limited (listed)

Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited (non- listed)

Cable

(ii)

& Wireless Seychelles Limited (non - listed)

Movements- Seybrew
Balance as at January 1,
Fair value adjustments
Balance as at December, 31

2021 2020 2021 2020
% Held % Held SCR SCR
20% 26% 264,339,829 265,135,334
30% 30% 25,333,715 36,111,891
22% 22% 294,435,792 154,934,990
2021 2020
SCR SCR
265,135,334 248,595,450
(795,505) 16,539,884
264,339,829 265,135,334

Seychelles Breweries has a financial reporting period ending 30 June.

At 31 December 2021, the fair value of the SPF's interest in Seychelles Breweries Limited. which is listed on the MERJ exchange,
was 3,314,606 shares at SCR 79.75 per share (2020: 3,314,606 shares at SCR 79.99) based on the quoted market price available,

which is a level 1 input in terms of IFRS 13.

Movements- Al Salam bank
Balance as at January 1,
Fair value adjustments
Balance as at December, 31

2021

2020

SCR

36,111,891
(10,778,176)

SCR

22.403.667
13.708.224

25,333,715

36,111,891

As at 31 December 2021, the fair value of the shares in respect of Al Salam Bank which is an non- listed were calculated using the

adjusted net asset value method which is a level 3 input in terms of IFRS 13.
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11, INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT...)

(b)

(N
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2021 2020
SCR SCR
(iii)  Movements - Cable & Wireless
Balance as at January 1, 154,934,990 330,404,100
Additions _ _
Fair value adjustments 139,500,802 (175.469,110)
Balance as at December, 31 294,435,792 154,934,990

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the shares in respect of Cable & Wireless which is an non- listed company were
calculated using the adjusted net asset value method which is a level 3 input in terms of IFRS 13, This is as per SPF's new
policy on valuation of unlisted equitics.

As at 31 December 2019, the fair value of the shares in respect of Cable & Wireless which is an non- listed company were
calculated using the adjusted net asset value method which is a level 3 input in terms of IFRS 13, This is as per SPF's new

policy on valuation of unlisted equitics.

SPF purchased 22% of sharcholdings in Cable and Wireless (Seychelles) Limited (the Company) in December 2019, for a
consideration of SCR 330,404, 100.

In line with the Adjusted Net Asset Value approach of IFRS 13, it is necessary that the material impact of the expected merger on
the Company's Net Asset Value and on SPF's sharcholdings is considered. An adjustment 1s made to the Net Asset Value of the
Company for the year ended on December 31, 2019, from SCR 1.879,202.000 to SCR 892,427,000 taking into account the
foreign currency obligation which was not taken into consideration initially. Correspondingly, the valuation of SPFs 22%
shareholdings in the Company under this approach is determined as SCR 196,334,000, which reflects a premium of 168% paid by
SPF for purchasing shares in the Company.

Considering the share purchase premium of 168% paid by SPF, the fair value of SPF's shareholdings in the Company for the vear
ended 31st December 2020 is calculated as SCR 154,934,990, which is a capital loss of SCR 175,469,110 or 33% year-on-vear.
For comparative purpose, if the exchange rates were to remain stable at their levels of 31st December 2019, the Company's Net
Asset Value would otherwise be SCR1,039,640 which would correspond to a year-on-year capital appreciation of 16% for SPF.

Details of the SPF's associates at the end of the reporting period is as follows:

Name Sevchelles Breweries Limited
Principle Activitics Beverage manufacturing

(1) Summarized statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other income as per the unaudited financial
statements (Seychelles Breweries Limited has a financial reporting period ending 30th June).

30 June 30 June
2021 2020
SCR '000 SCR 000
Assets
Current assets 204,098 192,522
Non-current assets 388,774 372.675
Liabilities
Current liabilities 100,184 103.435
Non-current liabilitics 70,167 61,395
Equity 422,521 400,367
Revenues 443,946 424,441
Profit before tax 94,514 112,826
Other comprehensive income - -
Total comprehensive income 09,404 81,902
Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights (Direct) 26% 26%
(i) Summarised cash flow information:
Operating activities 73,615 130,501
Investment activities (50,733) (59.693)
Finaneing activities 50,449 (30.855)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 73,331 39,953

(iii) There were no contingent liability as at the reporting period.
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1L INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (CONT...)

(2) Name
Principle Activitics

Al Salam Bank Seychelles

Banking Services

(i) Summarised statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other income as per unaudited financial

statements( Al Salam Bank Seychelles Limited has a financial reporting period ending 3 1st December).

Assets
Liabilities
Equity

Revenues

Profit before tax

l'ax charge

Total comprehensive income

Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights (Direct)
Proportion of ownership interest and voting rights (Direct)

(ii) Summarised cash flow information:
Operating activities

Investment activities

Financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(iii) There were no commitment and contingencies as at the reporting period.

(3) Name
Principle Activities

2021 2020
SCR '000 SCR '000
895,522 1,089,385
810,209 1,007,638
85313 81,747
29,262 30.2605
3,600 3,936
(40) 605
3,566 4.540
30% 30%
30% 30%
(83,7000 196,252
(132) (188)
(112,122) 191.441
(195,954) 387,505

Cable & Wireless Seychelles Limited

Telecommunication

(i) Summarised statement of financial position and statement of profit or loss and other income as per the unaudited financial

statements (Cable & Wircless Seychelles Limited has a financial reporting period ending 31st December).

Assets

Current asscls
Non-current assets
Liabilities

Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Equity

(i) Summarised cash flow information:
Operating activities

Investment activities

Financing activities

Net change in cash and cash equivalents

(iii) There were no contingent liability as at the reporting period.

12. ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

The movement during the year is as follows:
Balance as at January 1,

Transfer from investment properties
Additions

Disposals

Balance as at December, 31

Transfer from investment properties as per note 8,

2021 2020
SCR'Mn SCR'Mn
692 1,059
1,204 1,260
436 507
742 1,304
718 418
91 216
97) (70)
(96) (89)
(102) 57
2021 2020
SCR SCR
203,923,578 55,481,321
4,974,222 203,023,577
2,642,400 1,264,165
(4.974,222) (56,745.485)
706,565,078 203,073,578
4,974,222 203,923,578

In 2021, SPF had the intention to dispose 7 investment properties as approved by the Board of Trustees in not more one year from the

date of approval by the board of trustees. These assets were initially recognised at fair value when transferred. In 2021, only 1 of the

properties was disposed.
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13. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash at bank
Cash in hand

14. INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS

Non-current investments
Fixed deposits

Treasury bonds

Equity securitics

Current investments
Fixed deposits

Measurement category
Amortised cost
Amortised cost

Fair value through OCI

Amortised cost

2021 2020
SCR SCR
143,896,252 158,952,684
36.452 35,376
143,932,704 158,988,060
2021 2020
SCR SCR
32,092,071 32,092,071
243.271.250 205.000,000
288.879.08Y 376.549.916
564,242,410 613,641,987

298,713,470

332.398.655

Treasury Bills Amortised cost 37,552,865 49,592,400
Treasury bonds Amortised cost - 28.945.000
Lquity securities Fair valuc through P&L 13.711 13,711

336,280,046 410,949,766
Total financial assets 900,522,456 1.024.591.733

(a)  Investments in fixed deposits represent term deposits with banks with interest rates ranging from 0.13% to 2,.80% for USD account (2020: USD 1%
to 3.77%) and 1.45% to 7% (on local currency account) per annum (2020: SCR 4.90% to 7%) with maturity dates from 05th February 2021 to 24th
April 2025,

(b) Investments in Treasury Bonds comprise bonds with interest rates ranging from 3.5% to 12% per annum (2020 : 6% to 12%) and treasury bills from

4.91% 1o 6.25% for 365 days (2020 : 4.76% to 5.88%) maturity dates from 10th February 2021 to 15th March 2028,

(¢} Equity securities comprise of local securities listed on the MERJ Exchange and other unlisted securities. 1t also comprise of listed and unlisted foreign
securities.

(d)  IHicrarchy of fair value levels is detailed under note 3 (f). Due to limited information available for the fair value determination of the unquoted foreign
securities, their fair values have been determined based on the adjusted net assets value which is a level 3 input in terms of [FRS 13, In December
2021, SPF purchased 263,158 shares in Alrica Finance Corporation for the consideration of USD 500,000, in line with its diversification strategy.

The details of the fair value adjustments for the investments in unquoted cquitics are as follows;

2021 2020

SCR SCR
Africa Finance Corporation 6,953 -
.«'\Vi'rcxil‘n Bank (17.886,179) 25151.927
DB Class B shares (67.1 IiAi:”) 111,567,717
Sevchelles Commercial Bank 86‘_{“ 1 375,236
Central Common Cold Store % 9.651.480

02472390 135,736,360

The details of the fair value adjustments for the investments in quoted equities are as follows;

2021 2020

SCR SCR
GRIT (2,533.531) 232,383
SACOS - 265,09
R’]}i(ﬁr%{'lbus Stock Exchange - (265,690

(2,533,531) (33,307)

(¢)  The net movement in the financial assets including equity securities is shown below:

2021 2020

SCR SCR
At January 1 1.,024,591,753 929,321,171
Additions 344,319,820 351,529,515
Redemption (373,383,190) (402.971.987)
Fair value (loss)/gain (95,005,927) 146.713.,054
At December 31 900,522,456 1.024,591.753
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14.

n

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iv)

-

(vi)

(vii)

INVESTMENT IN FINANCIAL ASSETS (CONT...)

Investments in financial assets are denominated in the following currencies:

Seychelles Rupee
Mauritian Rupee
US Dollar

RECEIVABLES AND PREPAYMENTS

Contributions receivables from members (note iv)

Amount receivable from the Government of Seychelles (note vy
Interest receivable (note ix)

Rental income receivable (note i)

Advance payment on capital projects

Prepayments

Other receivables (note vi)

Rental income receivable (Net of Coneessions Allowed)
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (Note vii)
Net rent receivable

The provision for bad and doubtful debts is as follows:
At January 1,

Charge for the vear

Write off against provision

At December, 31

Thee

2021 2020
SCR SCR
560,118.009 644,100,188
13,711 13,711
340,390.736 380,477 8
900,522,456 1.024.591,753
2021 2020
SCR SCR
34,809,687 37,187.079
4,731,403 1,978,839
29,088,792 29,541,195
5,608,132 5,546,487
- 118,160
1,296,300 832,610
3.063.427 6,340,596
78,597,741 81,564,966
14.172.500 12,968,854
(8.564,368) (7,422.367)
5,608,132 5,546,487
7,422,367 2,573,693
1,142,001 4,886,240
- (37.566)
8,564,368 7.422 367

rying amount of the above receivables are denominated in Seychelles rupees and approximate their fair value.

The contributions recetvable from members are contributions for 31 December 2021 due on the 21st day of January 2021 and other contribution in

arrears,

The amount receivable from Government of Seychelles represents government pension (Special Pension/Entitlement and Early Retirement) which the
I'l l ble | ( t of Seychell p 1s g Lp S 1P Entitl tand Early Ret 1) which th

SPF paid to its members on behalf of and refundable by the Government of Seychelles.

Other receivables comprise of sundry debtors, staff loan and debtors clearing accounts.

I'he above balances are net of provision for credit impairment. As per the policy, provision of 30% has been made for outstanding debts over 60 days

and 100% provision made for all debts over 120 days. Debtors with repayment plans in place have been excluded from the provision calculation.

(viii) The SPF does not hold any collateral as security for the above receivables

(1x) Interest receivable includes interest receivable from Fixed Deposit. Treasury Bill and Treasury Bonds and PMC loan.

16.

LOANS RECEIVABLE

Loan receivable is from Property Management Corporation (PMC) a government entity, secured by Government Gazetted guarantee:

Balance as at January 1,
Repaid during the year
Interest receivable (note 25)
Balance as at December 31,

Current
Non-Current

2021 2020
SCR SCR
108.036.060 123,970,625
(25.109.336) {25.109.335)
7.852.208 9,174,770
90,778,932 108.036.060
18,832,001 17,257,127
71,946,931 90,778,933
90,778,932 108,036,060
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17.

(a)
(b)
(c)

(i)

(ii)

20.

21.

OTHER PAYABLES

2021 2020

SCR SCR
Rental deposits 11,524,416 10,552,858
Advance on rent 1,216,240 1,763,003
Advance on Loan 6,277,333 6,277,334
Accrued expenses 1,933,351 7.190.118
Account payable-Apartment project - 301,021
Account payable-Cable & Wireless (note ¢) - 54,092,250
Sundry payables - 1,172,565
20,951,340 81,349,149

The carrying amount of other payables are denominated in Seychelles rupees and approximate their fair value.
Sundry payables includes pension payments returned due to incorrect bank accounts/details of the pensioners/members.

These are share purchase consideration payable to Cable and Wireless Seyvchelles Limited.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS
Retirement benefit obligations is in respect of length-of-service compensation as per the Seychelles Employment Act 1995 as amended.

Amount recognised in the statement of financial position:

2021 2020
SCR SCR
Present value of unfunded obligation 8,225,605 8.632,172
Movement in liability recognised in statement of financial position:
Balance as at January, 1 8,632,172 7,238,579
Charge for the year (406,507) 1,393,593
Balance as at December, 31 8,225,605 8,032,172

I'he retirement benefit obligation has not been valued by an actuary since the management decided that had it been valued by actuary the impact
would not be material.

DEFERRED PROPERTY LEASE 2021 2020
SCR SCR

Cost

At 1 January & 31 December 7,846,750 7,846,750

Accumulated amortisation

AL 1 January | 1,320,035 1.211.355

Charge for the year 108,680 108.680

At 31 December 1,428,715 1,320,035

At 31 December 6,418,035 6.526.715

The lcaschold land was originally accounted for at SCR 1, the value at which it was transferred from the Government of Seychelles, this value has

been restated to fair value at the time of acquisition. The leaschold properties are Providence Micro Enterprise, Providence Warchouse, Port- Glaud
Micro Enterprise, Eve Island Enterprisc. The fair value of the benefit is being taken to income over the life of the underlying assets (60 - 99 years).

Valuation of net assets against actuarial value of promised retirement benefits

As per the actuary valuation the accrued benefits are separated between vested and non vested benefits, The vested benefits are the present value of
all expected future payments to current pensioners and future spouses’ pension on the death of current pensioners. Non vested benefit is the measure
of the value of the amount standing in member accounts at valuation date. SPF will be able to meet all benefit obligations in the future if this is
followed as SPF operates a 'pay-as-you-go' pension plan. Actuarial evaluation is done for the next 60 years.

MEMBERS' FUND

Member's fund represents the balance due to members who have contributed to the SPEF (which also includes the Seychelles Pension Scheme from
1991). This includes mandatory and voluntary contributions from employer and employee and contributions from self-employed with accumulated
interest over the years. The members fund is used to finance pension payment on a monthly basis and lump sum refunds for members not qualifying
for a monthly pension.

2021 2020

SCR SCR
Details of members fund are as follows:
Opening Balance 1,721.565,892 1.646.364,573
Mandatory contribution 428,247,697 716,236
Voluntary contribution 38,762,383 37.267.713
Pension and Benefit payments (465,135,811) (411.311.,760)
Other refunds (overpayments) (16,647,482) (9.006,368)
Interest for the year 37,306,953 3,498
At December 31, 35 1,744,099.632 ~ 1.721.565.802
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22.

(a)

(b)

24,

[
th

26

OTHER FUNDS

2021 2020

SCR SCR
Net contributions from Social Security carried forward (note a) 11,703,935 11,703,935
Receipts from National Provident Fund 71,215,276 71,215,276
SSF Investment Funds transferred to SPF 406,870,976 406,870,976
SPF contribution from the Government 43,489,567 43,489,567
At December 31, 533,279,754 533,279,754
Net contributions from Social Security includes following,
Contributions from Social Security Division 532,099,144 532,099,144
Payments made for Social Security Pension (520,395,209) (520,395.209)

11,703,935

11,703,935

The National Provident Fund Act was repealed and atter refunding the contributions to the persons entitled under the Act, the balance was
transferred to SPF as required under Section 73(2) of the Seychelles Pension Fund Act, 2005.

RESERVE FUND

Reserve Fund

2021 2020
SCR SCR
14,568,591 14,568,591

The Chief Executive Officer, acting on the advice of the Board of Trustees, has not made any annual transfer which up to the vear 2006

on the amount set aside which was 30% of the difference between the interest earned by SPF and the interest paid to the members.

The transfer to the Reserve Fund was made in order to increase the distributable reserve.

OTHER RESERVES

At January 1,
Net change in FV
At December 31,

INTEREST INCOME

- Fixed deposits

- Treasury bonds and bills

- Equity securities

- Bank balances

- Staff loans

- Loan and receivable from PMC

DIVIDEND INCOME

Dividends on local equity investments
Dividends on foreign equity investments

2021 2020

reserve reserves Total Total

SCR SCR SCR SCR
153,926,169 - 153,926,169 153,926,169
153,926, I-fi9 : 153,926, I-fi9 153,926, 1-69

2021 2020
SCR SCR
15,870,795 14,691,426
22,491,122 21,223,895
- 40,496
1,008,744 39,717
168,307 256,915
7,852,208 9,174,770
47,391,176 45,427.219
2021 2020
SCR SCR
14,462,417 12,429,773
6,888,274 9,882,016
21,350,691 22,311,789
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27. INTEREST CREDITED TO MEMBERS

Interest credited to Members' Fund was 2.53% and 5% for mandatory and voluntary respectively from 01.01.2021 to 31.12.2021. The
new interest policy effective 01.04.2019 calculate the interest rate to be credited to non-vested members who can withdraw lump sum
amounts from their account since they do not qualify for a pension based on the 12 months average saving rate. The amount of SCR 37m
was credited for the vear ended December 31, 2021 (2020 : Mandatory 2.72% and Voluntary 5.99% - SCR. 36m).

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

2021 2020

SCR SCR
Salaries, wages and other related 34,050,126 35,918,063
Office running costs 1,969,231 2.498.421
Motor vehicles running expenses 378,731 404.817
Postage, printing and stationary 1,149,690 1.539.116
Telephone 945,569 2,423,084
Utilities 475,217 919,051
Repairs and maintenance 593,570 1.044.961
Other expenses 4,886,250 3.881.213

44,448,384 48.629.326

Details of other expenses includes;
Internet charges 1,646,705 1,093,652
Rent- Caravelle House 1,354,200 1.299.300
Rent- Jupiter House 150,000 137.500
Cleaning 182,686 291,952
Board of Trustees fees 682,000 816,000
Medical Board fees 176,400 176,400
Office consumables 10,738 00,409
VAT not claimable 683,521 -
Total 4,886,250 3,881,213
Details of Office running cost includes;
Training 461,855 491,296
Uniforms 194,261 827.540
Travelling 31,240 158.517
Staff Welfare 724,084 407.834
Staff Insurance 65,130 13,249
Journals And Newspaper 36,084 2,500
Bank Charges 343,459 478,048
Miscellancous Expense 90,041 119,437
Agency Cost 23,071 -

1,969,231 2,498,421

29. OTHER PROFESSIONAL FEES

It includes the fee paid to Reserve Advisory and Management Partnership (RAMP) for capacity building purposes, a partnership between
SPF and the World Bank entered into in the year 2020.

37
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30. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

2021 2020
SCR SCR
Balances owing from related parties:
Other related parties
Government of Seychelles 4,731,403 3,846,743
Loans and receivable from PMC 90,778,932 108,036,059
Transactions
Dividends received
Opportunity Investment Company Limited - -
Sevchelles Breweries Limited 12,429,773 12,429,773
Rental received:
Government of Seychelles 31,386,669 76,956,498
Key management personnel
- Gross salarics (strategic management personnel) 3,528,487 3.876,520
Board of Trustees' remuncration (note 31) 682,000 816,000
(a)  Transactions with related parties are within the normal course of business.
(by  For the year ended December 31, 2021, the SPF has not recorded any impairment of reccivables relating to amounts owed by related parties as

it's carrying value approximates their fair value. (2020: Nil). This assessment is undertaken at the end of cach financial year through examining
the financial position of the related party and the market in which the latter operates.

31.  BOARD OF TRUSTEES' REMUNERATION AND SECRETARIAT EXPENSES

2021 2020

SCR SCR
M.Houarcau (1st March 2021 80,000 -
1. Dugasse (18th September 2018-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 8,000 96,000
P Payct (February 2018 onwards) 66,000 72,000
C Mangroo (January 2015-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2027 6,000 72.000
R Valmont (1st March 2018-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72.000
B Morin (Ist March 2018-31st Jun 2021) 60,000 -
C Vidot (Ist March 2018-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72.000
P Sinon (1st March 2018-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72,000
M C Maric (Ist August 2017-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72,000
13 Adonis (Ist February 2015-31st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72,000
A Robinson (1st February 2015-3 1st Jan 2021) resigned in 2021 6,000 72.000
Llsie Morel (Ist March 2018 onwards) 66,000 72.000
$.Mohideen (1st March 2021 onwards) 60,000 _
Jose St Ange (Ist March 2021 onwards) 60,000 -
Sarah Lang (1st March 2021 onwards) 60,000 -
S.Jolicoeur (Ist March 2021 onwards) 60,000 -
1. Rath (1st March 2021 onwards) 60,000 _
Secretariat
Audrey Nanon (From May 1, 2017-31st Jan 2021) Secretary resigned in 2021 6,000 72,000
M.Pillay (From May 1. 2021) Secretary 54,000 -

682,000 816,000
32, CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
2021 2020
SCR'000 SCR'000
Capital commitments
Approved and contracted for 126,045 190,621
Approved but not contracted for 516,900 424,207
642,945 614,828

Capital commitments are ongoing projects which have been approved by the Board of Trustees as at the reporting date. It includes both
contracted out projects as well as those vet to be contracted out. In view of the economic uncertainties, as result of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
capital cost of the uncontracted projects maybe subjected to significant changes.

38
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33.

34,

(i)

36.

Page 114

PROFIT ON SALE OF INVESTMENT

2021 2020
SCR SCR
Profit on sale of Perseverance apartment - 11,754,518
Profit on sale of Anse a La Mouche property 286,778 -
Profit on sale of foreign deposits, bonds and equities - 5,818,986
286,778 17,573,504

CONTINGENCIES
The Board of trustees are not aware of any contingent liabilities at December 31, 2021 (2020 : SCR : nil).
Following the fire that occurred at Le Chantier Mall on October 15, 2021, which partially destroyed the 3rd and the 4th Floor of the east

wing of the building, as at year ending December 31, 2021, the SPF was in the process of finalising and submitting the insurance claim to
our insurer SACOS.

EVENTS OCCURING AFTER REPORTING PERIOD
The contribution employee and employer contribution rates shall increase from 3 to 4% and 5% effective 1st April 2022, The employee
rate shall increase by a further 1% effective 1st January 2023 bringing it to 5%. The self employed contribution rate shall be increase from

6 % to 9% effective st April 2022 with a further 1% increase from Ist January 2023 bringing it to 10%. These changes will be reflected

in the amendment of the SPF (Membership and Contributions) Regulations.

GOING CONCERN

As a result of the spread of Covid 19, economic uncertainties have arisen which have negatively impacted the tourism and airline sector in
the Seychelles and consequently the short term profitability of the SPF. The extent ol the impact on the SPF's operations and [inancial
performance will depend on the duration and spread of the outbreak and its effect on the economy, employees, customers and suppliers, all
of which remains uncertain presently.

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of the SPF being a going concern.
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